

# Veterinarian Board of Governors Regular Meeting Minutes

## June 3, 2024

Location: Department of Health, TC2 Rm. 153 111 Israel Rd. SE, Tumwater, WA and via ZOOM

Board members present in person:	Andrea Sanchez-Chambers, DVM, Chair Debra Clabough Sellon, DVM Aja Senestraro, DVM Dai-E Dordor Vang, DVM, MPH, Kathryn Haigh, DVM Kim Morgan, LVT Katherine Bibi, DVM Rebecca Knoke, General Member
Staff members present:	Amber Freeberg, Executive Director Poppy Budrow, Program Manager Laura Riordan, Credentialing Shelbee Scrimo, Program Support Tara Mackemull, Program Support Megan Maxey. Policy Analyst
Others present:	
·	Ken Gordon, WSVMA
	Brittany Benesi
	Melisa Muriekes
	Robert Nicoloff
	Sean Garcia
	Betty Moe
	Beth Venit
	Tammy Kelley
	Ceair St.Onge Dan Paul
	Amie Farquhar- ASPCA
	Matthew Brim
	Kris Frykman
	Lori Grassi
	Julie Page

Notice of this meeting was published on the Veterinarian Board of Governors profession website and was sent out through the GovDelivery listserver.



#### Open Session:

### Call to Order, Mission, and Board Roll Call – Andrea Sanchez-Chambers, DVM, Chair

Dr. Sanchez called the meeting to order at 9:00am

### 1. Consent Agenda – Andrea Sanchez-Chambers, DVM, Chair

Approval of June 3, 2024, agenda

Motioned to add a section after item 11 to review emails from AAVSB, motioned seconded and passed unanimously.

Approval of March 4, 2023, business meeting minutes

Motioned, seconded, and passed unanimously.

### 2. Open Forum (limited to 10 minutes)

The board accepted comments from the audience on issues of significance to the profession.

<u>Ceair St. Onge</u>: Ms. St. Onge stated that she is working on creating policy to ban declawing in Washington state with the exceptions for therapeutic purposes. She is basing this policy on current declawing bans in the state of New York, Maryland, and Virginia, as well as the current ban in the city of Tacoma. She is seeking support, guidance, and comments regarding this topic of banning declawing in Washington state.

### 3. Reports

### 3.1 Andrea Sanchez-Chambers, DVM, Chair

Dr. Sanchez updated the board on new member recruitment, all interviews have been completed and selection is being sent up to the governor's office.

### 3.2 Amber Freeberg, Executive Director – Department of Health

Ms. Freeberg introduced new staff member Tara Mackemull and gave an update on the credentialing team that came to our team on May 1<sup>st</sup>.

### 3.3 Poppy Budrow, Program Manager – Department of Health

Ms. Budrow reviewed her time at the Rural Health Care Conference in Spokane.

### 3.4 Katherine Bibi, DVM, AAVSB Board Basics and Beyond conference update

Dr. Bibi reviewed her time at the AAVSB Boad and Basics Conference.

### 4. Rulemaking – Exam and Licensure Requirements and JP Exam Change

The purpose of this rulemaking is to consider changes that ensure application and licensure requirement WACs agree and make a recommendation regarding JP exam/CEU changes to implement SSB 1724 Section 8. WAC 246-933; CR-101 WSR 24-10-093 filed April 30, 2024.



Subcommittee Members: Drs. Katherine Bibi, Kathryn Haigh, Aja Senestraro

- 4.1. The Board opened for public comment. There is no comment at this time.
- 4.2. The Program Manager gave an update to the board on rules progress.
- 4.3. The Exam and Licensure Subcommittee scheduled their first meeting to be on June 14<sup>th</sup> at 7am.

### 5. Rulemaking -- Veterinary Telemedicine (VCPR)

The purpose of this rulemaking is to consider updates to VCPR/Telemedicine rules. WAC 246-933-200 and 246-933-010.

**Subcommittee Members:** Drs. Debra Sellon, Andrea Sanchez-Chambers, Dordor Vang

5.1. Open for public comment.

- Ken Gordon: WSVMA agrees with the way it is written and would like it to be passed quickly. ASPCA wanted the removal for VCPR in other states and passed in California, they are bringing it to legislation. WSVMA has 5 minor administrative suggestions in terms of hopefully improving the language. The process going through the review and the comments was incredibly thorough and robust. We would encourage you to pass this proposed code now, although we understand that you might have to go back for public comment. The reason we're pushing you to pass it as soon as possible is that we are aware of this legislation that's floating around. The ASPCA nationally is promoting the removal of in person VCPR. They promulgated the legislation, and it was passed in California last year. And Florida this year and they tried it also in Colorado, but it didn't pass. They have tabled that same legislation with some of their representatives and we've been having meetings with them this year. It's essentially the same legislation that passed in California. We are very concerned about that; we think the best way of dealing with this is have the Veterinary Board of Governors put in place this carefully nuanced set of rules that allow for telemedicine with very strong guidelines.
- Britany Bensi: On behalf of the ASPCA, can confirm that the ASPCA has been in discussions around legislative effort, at the state level within Washington however we are really committed to working with the board and really engaged in the discussion and rule-changing process. Access to care and keeping pets and people together amidst a growing shelter crisis in Washington state is where the ASPCA priorities lie, and we are looking at every avenue for increasing access to care and removing barriers for the one in three pets who are not receiving regular care. We have not stated that federal rules will not apply should there be a state VCPR role change, however, we have shared findings from the FDA in which the FDA has indicated deferral to state VCPR rule changes. Overall, we are very focused on the on-label prescription availability and treatments that are under state management and rules. We appreciate the board's consideration that the assumption that achieving an in person VCPR is a low bar for pet owners that this is based on a certain position of privilege. There are several families who love their pets dearly who care for them but for one of a myriad of reasons are



unable to act as appropriate veterinary care. According to the AVMA, 75% of veterinary prescriptions may be considered extra labels. At the very least, that leaves a quarter of prescriptions that may be offered to provide necessary care for pets who are unable to access it otherwise. One example of care unavailable under the current rule based on a request that the VCPR subcommittee meeting has recently shared with us regarding veterinary care gaps in indigenous communities. Who shared that expanding allowances for a VCPR would provide meaningful access to flea and tick medications and it's a key priority for these communities. This would not only ease the suffering and disease risk for reservation animals but would decrease the spread of tick-borne illnesses in the human population and allow these often-free roaming companion animals to be invited back into their home. Another example taking back to one provided during the VCPR subcommittee meeting of a 74-year-old woman in island counties whose 80-pound dog is terrified of going to the vet and has recently developed severe arthritis. This situation is not at all uncommon, yet the vet retaining an in-person and VCPR requirement, particularly one required on an annual basis, creates an overwhelming barrier to care for these types of families. Last, an example of a woman whose dog developed terrible motion sickness and anxiety anytime she had to get into the car following an accident. She had to wait 4 weeks for an in-person exam to show a video of her dog getting sick on her phone to obtain treatment. There are of course, numerous examples, where telehealth would not be an appropriate tool for comprehensive care. However, there are many instances in which it can be appropriate and plenty of others would in which it may be the only appropriate tool available. Respectfully request the board consider these examples in conjunction with the fact that there has not been a single recorded harm tied to the use. Thank you.

5.2.Dr. Sanchez gave an update on the recent VCPR subcommittee and reviewed the history of this rulemaking. The board reviewed and discussed the 7 different areas that they have changed/updated. The Board discussed creating a FAQ page for further clarification of the rule.

5.3. VCPR subcommittee will meet June 17, 2024 to review feedback and discuss possible revisions and/or telemedicine standards in WAC 246-933-200 Veterinary client-patient relationship.

### 6. Rulemaking – Animal Healthcare Tasks

The purpose of this rulemaking is to consider updates to Animal Healthcare Tasks WAC 246-935-040,010, and WAC 246-937-010

**Subcommittee Members:** Drs Katherine Bibi, Andrea Sanchez-Chambers, Ms. Kim Morgan, LVT

6.1. Open for public comment. No comments at this time.

6.2. Dr. Katherine Bibi gave a progress update on the Animal Healthcare Tasks Subcommittee



6.3. The Board reviewed and discussed draft rule language.

6.4. Animal Healthcare Tasks Subcommittee scheduled the next meeting for June  $12^{th}$  at 7am.

### 7. Animal Manipulation/Chiropractic Task Force Update

VBOG/Chiropractic Board task force to propose animal manipulation rule/law updates.

Task Force Members: Drs. Debra Sellon, Aja Senestraro

7.1 Dr. Aja Senestraro gave an update from the recent Chiropractic Task Force Meetings.

7.2 The board discussed adding an additional representative to the task force, Dr. Bibi agreed to join the task force.

# **Public Comment:**

- Julie Page: Equine veterinarian and has been in animal chiropractic for the past 18 years. Being out there in the field dealing with the human chiropractors, seeing a lot of manipulation, diagnosing, prognosis, all these kinds of things that vets do every day and having them misdiagnosed. For example, a string halt for a shiver's horse and they told people that these things can be fixed and as we know, they can't. Whether it is on social media or out here in the real world, we're seeing it all the time that chiropractor's education for our animals is very minimal. The 6 weeks of education that they go through compared to what Veterinarians go through to learn to chiropractic does not equivalate. Can I go to chiropractic school for 6 weeks and work on humans? I'm here to really advocate for our animals that these people are out there, they might have the technique, they might have the feel, they might have those kinds of things, but it is something that we as veterinarians all learn and can put into daily practice. Veterinarians can go to school for these specialties and currently Chi is the only university that offers these courses only to veterinarians, Chi University in Florida. As a veterinarian going through their acupuncture program right now and seeing how they advocate for us as veterinarians only doing this because of the misdiagnosis and mistreatment. Misadvising clients is huge. Really advocate for us as veterinarians to keep this in our scope because of our licensure and to protect our animals and our clients.
- Ken Gordon: Attended the joint committee meeting on April 22,2024 thought it was a great committee meeting. WSVMA is just watching this carefully, the metrics that we'll be using to formulate our final position on the legislation that comes forward is the care of animals and the safety of humans. Which is not inconsistent with the mission of the Veterinary Board of Governors. We are very concerned about the meeting of the chiropractic committee last week. Their approach to record keeping to reportable diseases, to allergens, to radiography to coordination with, veterinarians which they consider to be burdensome and their inclusion of all species within the proposed code made us very concerned. They seemed like they were looking at the different bits of



legislation around the country and choosing the lowest common denominator for each of those factors. We're not opposing or supporting anything at the moment. But in terms of our matrix, the care of animals and the safety of humans, we are very concerned with the approach that we saw at the meeting last week.

### 8. Fluoroscopic X-ray Rules Advisory Committee

The Office of Radiation Protection is considering updates related to fluoroscopic X-ray (WAC 246-225-050) to address advancements in technology. WAC 246-255-020, 030; WSR 24-03-137.

- 8.1 Ms. Poppy Budrow gave an update from the April 24, 2024, RAC Meeting.
- 8.2 The board discussed sending representatives to the RAC meeting.

Dr. Sanchez moved for Dr. Sellon and Dr. Bibi to attend these meetings along with a subject expert to represent VBOG. Motion seconded and passed unanimously.

8.3 The next RAC meeting will be June 11, 2024, from 2-4 pm, repeating every five weeks for six months.

### 9. Review of Draft Credentialing Matrix

The board reviewed the Draft Credentialing Matrix and discussed what changes that would be recommended.

### 10. Review of Bylaws

The Board reviewed and discussed updates to the bylaws. The board moved to update the bylaws to align with the current RCW. The motion was seconded and passed unanimously.

The board reviewed and discussed the correspondence from AAVSB and moved to send a representative to the September AAVSB annual meeting to approve the updated bylaws. The motion was seconded and approved unanimously.

### 11. Correspondence

The board reviewed and discussed the following letters:

11.1. Question regarding heartworm preventative medication.

### 12. Meeting Dates for 2024

- 12.1. September 9, December 9, 2024
- 12.2. The board discussed meeting dates for 2025 and strategic planning meeting for 2025.



12.3. Dr. Sanchez, Dr. Haigh and Kim Morgan agreed to be on the Strategic Planning Committee.

### 13. Agenda Development

The board reviewed and identified agenda items for the September 9, 2024, business meeting.

#### Adjournment of Open Session

Meeting was adjourned at 2:17pm, it was moved, seconded, and passed.

**Submitted by:** Poppy Budrow, Program Manager Veterinarian Board of Governors **Approved by:** Andrea Sanchez-Chambers, Chair Veterinarian Board of Governors

On file

SIGNATURE

On file

SIGNATURE

DATE

DATE